
 

 1

Ryan White Planning Council (RWPC) of the Philadelphia Part A EMA 
Needs Assessment Committee 

Meeting Minutes of  
Monday, November 14, 2011 

2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. 
Office of HIV Planning, 340 N. 12th Street, Suite 203, Philadelphia, PA  19107 

 
 
Present:  Christine Ambrose, Naseem Bazargan (Co-Chair), Dawna Edwards-Watson 
(Co-Chair), Kevin Huang, Gerry Keys, Kevin Smith 
 
Excused:  Amy Eusebio 
 
Staff:  Debbie Law, Briana Morgan, Nishika Vidanage 
 
Call to Order/Introductions: 
D. Edwards-Watson called the meeting to order at 2:20 p.m.  All those present introduced 
themselves.   
 
Approval of Agenda: 
D. Edwards-Watson presented the agenda for approval.  Motion:  C. Ambrose moved, K. 
Smith seconded to approve the agenda.  Motion passed:  All in favor.   
 
Approval of Minutes (October 17, 2011): 
D. Edwards-Watson presented the October 17, 2011 minutes for approval.  Motion:  C. 
Ambrose moved, D. Edwards-Watson seconded to approve the October 2011 minutes.  
Motion passed:  All in favor. 
 
Report of Co-Chair: 
D. Edwards-Watson stated that the co-chair position for the Needs Assessment 
Committee was still vacant, and asked anyone interested in the position to speak with D. 
Law. 
 
Report of Staff: 
None. 
 
Discussion Item:  
 Plan for the 2012 Consumer Survey 
D. Law noted that the committee calendar was included in the meeting packet (see – 
attached handout).  She stated that Office of HIV Planning staff had spoken with the 
other organizations that they had discussed partnering with, and that they had found that 
the other organizations were on a shorter timeline than the OHP.   She went on to say that 
staff had also brainstormed some ideas for outreach.  D. Edwards-Watson stated that she 
had many contacts at recovery houses and shelters so it would be easy for her to reach out 
to them in order to promote the survey.   
 



 

 2

D. Law next stated that the wording in the survey had been simplified, although some 
questions could not be simplified to a third-grade reading level.  She noted that they did 
include a suggestion in the introduction for those taking the survey to ask their case 
managers for assistance if need.  D. Edwards-Watson agreed that it would be impossible 
to reduce the survey to a third-grade reading level.  She noted that the typical standard for 
documents was a sixth-grade reading level to an eighth-grade reading level.   
 
D. Law then stated that they had been asked to include a question on whether the 
respondent had translation available at his or her doctor’s office, but that a similar 
question was asked elsewhere.  She went on to say that they had also been asked to 
include a question on whether respondents had been asked to participate in clinical trials, 
but the group agreed that this question was not relevant to the RWPC’s work.  She added 
that the survey could be test-piloted with the Positive Committee at their December 12 
meeting. 
 
D. Law next stated that the survey packet would be placed in a 6 x 9” manila envelope, 
and would include a cover letter from the agency to its clients, a return envelope, the 
survey itself, a flat pocket first aid kit, an AACO hotline card and condom instructions.  
She noted that they had discussed including condoms, but that this had not been 
approved.  D. Edwards-Watson stated that they might not want condoms to go through 
the mail because they could be damaged.  C. Ambrose then suggested asking providers to 
give condoms to clients that completed the survey.  D. Edwards-Watson next asked if the 
condom instruction card included instructions for both male and female condoms.  D. 
Law replied that she had not yet seen the card.  She noted that they may include a flier for 
the spring social in the mailing if they had details available.  C. Ambrose suggested 
including palm cards with the Office’s social media sites in the packet as well.   
 
D. Law noted that the Needs Assessment Committee would be taking time at its next 
meeting to formulate questions for Evelyn Torres’ (AACO) presentation at the 
Comprehensive Planning Committee’s January meeting.   
 
D. Edwards-Watson suggested emailing RWPC members to see when they would be 
available to stuff survey packet envelopes.  D. Law replied that they would try to find a 
time for everyone to meet that would not conflict with other meetings.  She noted that 
they would also like to make packets for those that could distribute surveys at group 
meetings.  She then stated that they had also previously asked providers to leave drop 
boxes for surveys in their waiting areas.  She went on to explain that they would follow 
up with providers in March, and begin initial analysis in April.  C. Ambrose noted that a 
script for phone calls to providers would be available.   
 
D. Law then distributed draft copies of the consumer survey (see – attached handout).  C. 
Ambrose stated that it would be important to add the names of each of the nine counties 
to the cover letter.  She then stated that she thought that question #35 was oddly placed.   
D. Law replied that those that were HIV-negative would skip to question #35, but that 
#35 could be moved to #23.  D. Edwards-Watson then suggested clarifying #35 so it read, 
“Medicare (for people who are disabled and/or 65 years and older).”  C. Ambrose 



 

 3

suggested putting “welfare” next to Medicaid.  D. Law replied that they had previously 
considered this, but chose not to use the term “welfare” due to a negative connotation.  
The group then agreed to leave #35 at its current position in the survey.  
 
D. Law noted that question #46 was supposed to read, “In your opinion, why are people 
not in HIV care?” 
 
D. Edwards-Watson next stated that she had an easy time taking the survey as a test.  K. 
Smith agreed that taking the survey had gone well, though he found some questions 
confusing.  He then stated that some consumers had Medicaid or Medicare in addition to 
third-party insurance.  K. Huang stated that he had a hard time reading the survey due to 
the lack of contrast in colors.  He then stated that the question on race did not ask for 
specific responses for someone identified as biracial/multiracial.  N. Bazargan suggested 
asking those that considered themselves biracial/multiracial to “check all that apply.”  D. 
Law explained that this would cause them to count some respondents twice, and noted 
that the list of races was based on a list from the CDC.   She then noted that biracial 
consumers represented approximately 2% of PLWHA.  N. Bazargan asked how those that 
wrote their race in the survey would be counted.  D. Law replied that they had previously 
been individually listed, adding that they had not had many biracial respondents in the 
last round of the survey.  
 
K. Huang stated that many HIV-positive Asians would not be able to complete the survey 
if they were monolingual.  D. Law replied that they were asking providers to help clients 
to fill out the surveys.  She went on to say that they would ask providers to do this while 
making their initial phone calls.   
 
D. Law next stated that she had formatted the survey including many different shades of 
gray so the group would be able to determine which shades provided the best contrast.  K. 
Huang asked if it was necessary to have some of the text on a gray background, rather 
than using a white background alone.  He explained that it would be more difficult for 
some people to read black test on a gray background.  D. Law replied that they had 
followed the format from the census.  She explained that they had found that an all-white 
background was visually confusing, and those taking the survey had a difficult time 
following it.    
 
Action Item:  
 Co-Chair Position 

C. Ambrose stated that N. Bazargan had accepted the nomination for the position of 
Needs Assessment Committee co-chair.  Motion passed:  4 in favor, 0 opposed, and 
0 abstentions.   

 
Next Steps:  
D. Edwards-Watson stated that there would be a joint meeting for committee co-chairs on 
Thursday, December 8 from 1 p.m. – 2 p.m.  She added that the next Needs Assessment 
Committee meeting would be on Monday, December 12. 
 



 

 4

Old Business: 
None. 
 
New Business: 
None. 
 
Announcements: 
N. Bazargan stated that she would be instructing TEACH Outside classes at Philadelphia 
FIGHT beginning in January. 
 
K. Huang announced that ASIAC would be holding a preliminary presentation on its 
needs assessment for Asians and Pacific Islanders on December 20. 
 
Adjournment: 
Motion:  K. Smith moved, N. Bazargan seconded to adjourn the meeting at 3:22 p.m.  
Motion passed:  All in favor. 
 
Respectfully Submitted by, 
 
 
Briana L. Morgan, Staff 
 
Handouts distributed at the meeting: 

 Meeting Agenda 
 Meeting Minutes from October 17, 2011 
 Needs Assessment Committee Calendar 2011 – 2012  
 OHP Calendar 
































